
           

TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL  

Tuesday, MAY 29, 2018
 

 

JUANITA POHL CENTER  

8513 SW Tualatin Road  

Tualatin, OR 97062  

WORK SESSION begins at 6:00 p.m.
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Joelle Davis

 Councilor Robert Kellogg            Councilor Frank Bubenik
 Councilor Paul Morrison             Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Jeff DeHaan
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for your comments on its agenda, following Announcements, at which time citizens may
address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda or to request to have an item
removed from the consent agenda. If you wish to speak on a item already on the agenda,
comment will be taken during that item. Please fill out a Speaker Request Form and submit it to
the Recording Secretary. You will be called forward during the appropriate time; each speaker
will be limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent
of the Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org/
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.

 



 

OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 29,
2018

           

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

  

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 

1. Proclamation Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as Emergency Medical Services
Week in the City of Tualatin

 

2. Recognition of Paul Hennon on the Occassion of His Retirement
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

  

 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 14, 2018
 

2. Consideration of Approval of 2018 Liquor License Renewals-Late Submittals
 

3. Consideration of Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Lakeside Bistro
 

4. Consideration of Resolution No. 5366-18 Authorizing the City Manager to Accept
Major Streets Transportation Improvement Program (MSTIP) Funds to Complete
Project Design and Construction for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and
Enhancement Project

 

5. Consideration of Resolution No. 5370-18 Authorizing the City Manager to Acquire
Property for Parkland Purposes

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS   



E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will
be called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

1. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1409-18 establishing a Core Area Parking District
(CAPD) Tax Rate of $170.88 for Fiscal Year 2018/19

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5367-18 Granting a Minor Architectural Review to
Tualatin Professional Center (TPC) Parking Lot Improvement Located at 6464 Sw
Borland Road (MAR17-0041)

 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 5369-18 Granting a Variance to the Separation
Requirements of Wireless Communication Facilities (VAR17-00001)

 

F. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

  

 

G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS   

 

H. ADJOURNMENT   

 



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Proclamation Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as Emergency

Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Proclamation Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as Emergency Medical Services Week in
the City of Tualatin

Proclamation 



Proclamation 
 

Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as  
Emergency Medical Services Week  

in the City of Tualatin 

 WHEREAS emergency medical services are a vital public service; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 
lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 

 WHEREAS access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and 
recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

 WHEREAS the emergency medical services system consists of emergency 
physicians, emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, 
educators, administrators and others; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 
volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education 
to enhance their lifesaving skills; and 

 WHEREAS it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 
emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week;  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON that: 

 The week of May 20-26, 2018 is designated as Emergency Medical Services Week in 
the City of Tualatin to call attention to Emergency Medical Services providers for the 
outstanding service they provide to the community. The City Council also calls upon the 
community to express their thanks to these the men and women for their outstanding 
dedication to their field.  

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of May, 2018. 
 
       CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
 
       BY _________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 

BY _________________________ 
         City Recorder 



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Recognition of Paul Hennon on the Occassion of His Retirement

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Recognition of Paul Hennon on the Occassion of His Retirement

Proclamation 



Proclamation 
 

Recognizing Paul Hennon  
on the Occasion of His Retirement 

 

 WHEREAS, Paul Hennon was hired on September 1, 1987 as Tualatin’s Parks & Recreation 
Director; in 1999 the department was reorganized and Paul’s title was changed to Community Services 
Director, the title he has held since that time; and 
 

WHEREAS, Paul came to Tualatin at a time when the community was growing and the City Council 
was supportive of growing the public amenities along with that; Paul Hennon was the perfect person to 
implement the Parks & Recreation Master Plan and guide the community through tremendous change and 
growth; and 

 
WHEREAS, acquisition and development of parks and natural areas has flourished under Paul’s 

guidance including the development of four of Tualatin’s neighborhood parks, renovation of the north end of 
Community Park, the skate park and dog park, partnering with the School District on a joint use agreement 
to construct the synthetic turf field at Tualatin High School and the cross country running trail, and ensuring 
the community had access to the Tualatin River via floating docks at Brown’s Ferry and Jurgens Parks as 
well as a canoe and kayak launch under Highway 99 at Hazelbrook Road.; and 
 

WHEREAS, Paul oversaw acquisition and development of major segments of the Tualatin River 
Greenway and Tualatin’s Creekside Greenways including the Chieftain Dakota Greenway, Hedges Creek 
Greenway, and Saum Creek Greenway; as well as master planning and land acquisitions along the new Ice 
Age Tonquin Trail in partnership with Metro; and 
 

WHEREAS, Paul was in charge of planning and construction of buildings including the Library, 
building additions to the Juanita Pohl Center, relocation and renovation of the old Methodist Church into the 
Tualatin Heritage Center, and various picnic shelters and restrooms in parks and the Tualatin Commons; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Paul managed Tualatin’s Urban and Community Forestry Program, cultivated 
Tualatin’s Public Art Program, installed the first bike lanes throughout Tualatin’s streets, and initiated and 
supported Tualatin’s vibrant volunteer program; and 
 

WHEREAS, Paul knew and understood the value of programs, events, and activities in making 
Tualatin the community we know and love; from the library programs and events, to all of the myriad 
recreation activities, to the special events that attract thousands of residents and people from all over the 
world, Paul has greatly influenced Tualatin’s unique identify and in the process gladdened our hearts. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 
OREGON that: 

 In recognition of his retirement from an exceptional career, Thursday, May 31, 2018 is “Paul 
Hennon Day” in the City of Tualatin. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of May, 2018. 
 
       CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
       BY _________________________ 
         Mayor 
       ATTEST: 
 

BY _________________________ 
         City Recorder 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 14, 2018

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve the minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 14, 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council adopt the attached minutes.

Attachments: City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 14, 2018



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 14,
2018 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Council President Joelle Davis;
Councilor Paul Morrison; Councilor Jeff DeHaan; Councilor Robert Kellogg 

Absent: Councilor Nancy Grimes 
Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Bill Steele;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Planning
Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City Recorder Nicole Morris; Teen Program
Specialist Julie Ludemann; Maintenance Services Division Manager Clayton
Reynolds; Library Manager Jerianne Thompson; Parks and Recreation Manager Rich
Mueller; Associate Planner Erin Engman; City Engineer Jeff Fuchs; IS Director Bates
Russell 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Council President Davis called the meeting to order at 7:09 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for May 2018   

 
  Members of the Youth Advisory Committee (YAC) presented a PowerPoint on their

latest activities and upcoming events. YAC is preparing for Project FRIENDS to be
held on April 20. They are expecting 300 5th graders from Byrom, Bridgeport, Deer
Creek and Tualatin Elementary. On Monday 21 YAC will be holding a Youth Summit
with the City Council and other youth to discuss important topics affecting the
community. YAC will hold their annual Blender Dash on June 2 for kids ages 6-15 at
Tualatin Community Park. The YAC will be participating in the Movies on the
Commons events this summer. Movies are shown every Saturday starting in July
through the end of the summer.

 

2. Proclamation Declaring May 13-19, 2018 as National Police Week in the City of
Tualatin

  

 
  Councilor Bubenik read the proclamation declaring May 13-19, 2018 as National

Police Week in the City of Tualatin. 
 

3. New Employee Introduction - Taylor Nopson, Police Officer   

 
  Police Chief Bill Steel introduced Police Officer Taylor Nopson. The Council

welcomed her. 
 

4. New Employee Introduction- Onnie Neumann, Permit Technician

May 14, 2018
1 of 8 

  



 
  Community Development Director Aquilla Hurd-Ravich introduced Permit

Technician Onnie Neumann. The Council welcomed her. 
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 
  M.E.Ch.A.De Tualatin High School Students announced they have partnered with

Unite Oregon on an Immigrant Support Project. The asked the Council to support
the project through promotion, waived fees, table space at special events, and
allowing the group to make quarterly City Council reports. The groups fundraising
goal is $6,000 and to date they have raised $3,800 for the fund.

Dale Potts announced the Memorial Day Observance and Community Picnic to be
held at Winona Cemetery on May 28, 10:45 a.m.

Judy Nix and Carol Difono from Family Promise of Tualatin Valley asked the Council
for support of their program through the upcoming grant funding process. They also
announce their “Drive-In, Sleep Out” fundraiser.

Amanda Guile-Hinman spoke in opposition of the proposed parking permit zone
behind the high school.

Cathy Holland, Warren Harnew, and Charles Blatt requested a portion of Jurgen’s
Park be committed to an off leash dog facility during the Parks and Recreation
Master Plan process.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you wish
to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Councilor Frank Bubenik, SECONDED by Councilor Jeff DeHaan to

adopt the consent agenda.  
  Aye:  Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle Davis, Councilor Jeff

DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert Kellogg 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Special Work Session of April 12,
2018 and Regular Meeting of April 23, 2018

  

 

2. Consideration of Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Wine and Design   

May 14, 2018
2 of 8 

  



 

3. Consideration of Resolution 5364-18 Awarding the Bid for the Construction of the
2018 Pavement Maintenance Program

  

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will be
called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

1. Tualatin Interceptor and Syphon Improvement Project Update    

 
  Community Development Director Paul Hennon introduced Wade Denny from Clean

Water Services. Mr. Denny presented information on the upper Tualatin interceptor
and syphon improvement project. The existing sanitary sewer infrastructure for the
planned area was reviewed. A study was done in 2016 with the goal to optimize
existing infrastructure capacity and effectively transport flows while meeting the
future needs. One of those projects that came from the study was the Tualatin
Interceptor Project. Design for the project started in October 2017. The first phase
of the project will start June 2018. The project is estimated to cost $30 million to
complete and will be the largest project the district has completed. Project impacts
will include truck traffic into and out of the area. Construction will be happening in
Cook and Jurgen’s Park. Outreach has included attending citizen advisory group
meetings, outreach to city leadership, and localized mailers. After the project is
completed their will be enhancements and restoration of all disturbed wetlands. 

Councilor Bubenik asked about construction location in phase 2A. Mr. Denny stated
it will be along the south side of the river.

Councilor Bubenik asked about the construction impacts during school hours. Mr.
Denny stated construction will be during the summer so there will be minimal
impact. 

Council President Davis asked how deep they would be digging. Mr. Denny stated
they will dig between 14-28 feet. Council President Davis asked if there is an
archeologist attached to the project. Mr. Denny stated there has been surveys done
and they have an archeologist on standby if issues arise. 

Councilor Bubenik asked where construction vehicles will be staged. Mr. Denny
stated they will be staged onsite. They have acquired the appropriate temporary
construction easements to do so.

Councilor Bubenik asked about the wild life protections that have been put in place.
Mr. Denny stated bird surveys are being conducted and other necessary
precautions are being taken. 

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5365-18 to adopt Solid Waste and Recycling Rate
Adjustment and Interim Surcharge

  

 
  Information Services Director Bates Russell introduced staff from Republic Services

May 14, 2018
3 of 8 

  



  Information Services Director Bates Russell introduced staff from Republic Services
who presented proposed solid waste and recycling rate adjustments. Republic
Services Municipal Manager Therese McClain gave a brief national overview of
Republic Services. Republic Services Operations Manager Frank Lonergan spoke
to services in Tualatin noting there are 14 drivers that service Tualatin, they pick up
130,000 containers every year which amounts to 36,162 tons of materials. He
spoke to their community involvement, noting the company has donated close to
$20,000 in 2017.

Republic Services General Manager Jason Jordan spoke to the proposed 2018 rate
adjustments. He stated the franchise agreement states that Republic will come to
council bi-annually to address rate adjustments. Mr. Jordan spoke to contributing
factors in price including disposal costs, different types of materials that are
processed, labor, and maintenance costs. He noted Tualatin’s rates compare to
other surrounding cities.

Councilor Bubenik asked how much of Republic’s fees go to Metro. Mr. Jordan
stated 30% of their fee’s go directly to Metro.

Councilor Kellogg asked why labor and medical costs went up 30%. Mr. Jordan
stated they went through labor negotiations this year and the increases are due to
the new contract.

Mr. Jordan spoke to the recycling market and the new regulations that are impacting
the local recycling market. He stated due to these changes Republic is proposing
an interim recycling charge to match what Washington County has implemented.

Councilor Bubenik asked if paper or plastic are the issues with recycling. Mr. Jordan
stated both are the issues. Councilor Bubenik asked what the surcharge would
cover. Mr. Jordan stated it recovers the direct cost to Republic of the market
commodity value.

Council President Davis about public education regarding recycling. Ms. McClain
stated they are working on some new handouts in conjunction with the City and
County.

Councilor Morrison asked how the base rate will be affected by the recycling
surcharge. Mr. Jordan stated the surcharge will be separated so that it can be
better analyzed. He noted it is a $2.00 surchage for residential homes and a 4%
charge on commercial rates.

Councilor Bubenik asked about customer outreach regarding the surcharge. Mr.
Jordan stated they have conducted some outreach but where waiting to solidify the
rate before moving forward.

Councilor Kellogg asked what would make the surcharge go away in the future. Mr.
Jordan stated the recycling market would need to take a turn by finding an
alternative market to mitigate the cost. He noted republic will do a semi-annual
review of the surcharge.

Councilor DeHaan asked when the last time this franchise contract has went to bid.

May 14, 2018
4 of 8 

  



Manager Russell stated every five years the contract comes up for renewal.
 

  MOTION by Councilor Robert Kellogg, SECONDED by Councilor Paul Morrison to
adopt Resolution No. 5365-18 to adopt Solid Waste and Recycling Rate Adjustment
and adding an interim recycling surcharge with an effective date of June 1, 2018,
while rescinding Resolution No. 5273-16.

DELIBERATION ON THE MOTION
Councilor DeHaan stated he has concerns with the overall cost of the service.

Councilor Morrison stated he is impressed with the service they provide. 
  Aye:  Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle Davis, Councilor Paul

Morrison, Councilor Robert Kellogg 
Nay:  Councilor Jeff DeHaan 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Abstain), Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

3. Parks and Recreation Master Plan Project Update    

 
  Community Development Director Paul Hennon, Parks and Recreation Manager

Rich Mueller, and Consultant Cindy Mendoza, MIG presented an update on the
Parks and Recreation Master Plan. Manager Mueller reviewed the project phases
and noted they are currently in phase four and five. It was noted community
outreach themes have been based on public involvement and engagement and
include trail connections, trail activities, improved facilities and expanded capacity
for sports, inclusive communications, and a greater variety of activities and
programs. 

Consultant Mendoza spoke to the elements of the framework for the core values,
vision, and mission. The framework for all the elements was based on the Council
vision, the Tualatin Tomorrow vision, Community Outreach, and the project advisory
committee. She spoke to the core values including health and wellness,
conservation and stewardship, inclusiveness and equity, diversity, economic vitality,
accessibility and connectivity, community engagement, social cohesion, community
vibrancy and livability, and family-friendliness. The vision and mission for the project
were reviewed. Seven goals and objectives have been established. Consultant
Mendoza reviewed each goal and identified objectives for each. 

Manager Mueller stated next steps included reviewing recommendations and
capital project lists in the spring and summer. Plan adoption is proposed for this
upcoming winter.

Councilor DeHaan asked about the Hispanic communities use of facilities. Manager
Mueller stated they specifically reached out to the Hispanic community during
outreach and received great feedback. 

Mayor Ogden asked about how projects will be prioritized. Consultant Mendoza
stated the next step is to begin the prioritization process. Director Hennon stated
projects will get vetted through the project advisory committee and then come

May 14, 2018
5 of 8 

  



before the Council. 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Quasi-Judicial
 

1. Continued Hearing for Request for Review of MAR17-0041, Tualatin Professional
Center Parking Lot Improvement Land Use Decision located at 6464 SW Borland
Road

  

 
  The Council took a break from 9:34 p.m. to 9:45 p.m.

Mayor Ogden reopened the hearing from the April 23, 2018 Council meeting.

Associate Planner Erin Engman entered the staff report and attachments into the
record. Planner Engman stated the staff report staff report contains new evidence
from the variance hearing held before the Tualatin Planning Commission. She
stated the applicant has requested the Council modify conditions five and six in
relation to the drive aisle length. The applicant has submitted a revised proposal that
includes revised site plans and project scope. Planner Engman reviewed the staff
recommendations for the conditions of approval. Modification to conditions five and
six were made per the granted variance.

APPLICANT
Dorothy Cofield, Attorney for the Tualatin Professional Center, stated they are in
agreement with the staff. They accept the conditions and the modifications as
proposed. 

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

COUNCIL QUESTION/DELIBERATIONS
None.

 

  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Frank
Bubenik to approve MAR17-0041, Tualatin Professional Center Parking Lot
Improvement Land Use Decision located at 6464 SW Borland Road. 

  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle Davis,
Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

2. Continued Hearing for the Request for Review (Appeal) of a Planning Commission
Decision Approving a Variance (VAR17-0001) to the Separation Requirements of
Wireless Communication Facilities

  

 
  Community Development Director Aquilla Hurd-Ravich stated the applicant applied

May 14, 2018
6 of 8 

  



  Community Development Director Aquilla Hurd-Ravich stated the applicant applied
for a variance that was approved by the Tualatin Planning Commission and then
appealed and forwarded to the Council. The Council held a hearing where the
appellant requested the record be kept open for seven days. The record has been
closed and this is a continuation from that hearing.

Council President Davis asked if there was any new materials submitted that
changed staff recommendations. Director Hurd-Ravich stated staff’s
recommendation has remained the same.

COUNCIL DELIBERATIONS
None.

 

  MOTION by Councilor Paul Morrison, SECONDED by Councilor Jeff DeHaan to
approve Variance (VAR17-0001) to locate a Wireless Communication Facility (WCF)
at 10290 SW Tualatin Road. 

  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Council President Joelle Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan,
Councilor Paul Morrison 

Nay:  Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Robert Kellogg 
Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 
  Councilor Kellogg would like to have the Council review the language associated

with the monopole language in the development code. City Attorney Brady stated
the entire code is being reviewed and updated at this time.

Councilor Bubenik reminded all citizens to vote at the May 15 election.

Councilor Bubenik attended the opening of the Borland Free Clinic. He stated
transportation to the clinic is available for those in need.

Councilor Morrison stated PGE made a contribution to the transportation measure.
He noted PGE would like to work with the City to bury the electrical lines located at
the garden corner curves.

 

H. ADJOURNMENT
 
  Mayor Ogden adjourned the meeting at 10:06 p.m.
 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 
May 14, 2018
7 of 8 

  



May 14, 2018
8 of 8 

  



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of 2018 Liquor License Renewals-Late Submittals

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve liquor license renewal applications for 2018. The
business listed below submitted their 2018 renewal application too late to be included in the
renewals approved at the March 26, 2018 Council meeting. Copies have not been included with
this staff report but are available at the City Offices for review.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends the Council approve endorsement of the following liquor license
application renewal for 2018:

Jo's Bar and Grill

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Annually the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) requires all liquor licenses be
renewed. According to the provisions of City Ordinance No. 680-85, establishing procedures for
liquor license applicants, applicants are required to fill out a City application form, from which a
review by the Police Department is conducted, according to standards and criteria established
in Section 6 of the ordinance. The liquor license renewal applications are in accordance with all
ordinances and the Police Department has conducted reviews of the applications.

According to the provisions of Section 5 of Ordinance No. 680-85 a member of the Council or
the public may request a public hearing on any of the liquor license renewal requests. If such a
public hearing request is made, a hearing will be scheduled and held on the license. It is
important that any request for such a hearing include reasons for said hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
A renewal fee of $35 has been paid by the applicant.

Attachments: 

↵

↵





TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Lakeside Bistro

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve a new liquor license application for Lakeside Bistro.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council approve endorsement of the liquor license
application for Lakeside Bistro.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Lakeside Bistro has submitted a new liquor license application under the category of limited
on-premises and off premises sales. This would permit them to sell factory-sealed malt
beverages, wine, and cider at retail to individuals in Oregon for consumption on and off the
licensed premises. They would also be eligible to provide sample tastings of malt beverages,
wine, and cider for consumption on the premises. The business is located at 8294 SW Nyberg
Road. The application is in accordance with provisions of Ordinance No.680-85 which
established a procedure for review of liquor licenses by the Council. Applicants are required to
fill out a City application form, from which a review by the Police Department is conducted,
according to standards and criteria established in Section 6 of the ordinance. The Police
Department has reviewed the new liquor license application and recommended approval.
According to the provisions of Section 5 of Ordinance No. 680-85 a member of the Council or
the public may request a public hearing on any of the liquor license requests. If such a public
hearing request is made, a hearing will be scheduled and held on the license. It is important that
any request for such a hearing include reasons for said hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
A fee has been paid by the applicant.

Attachments: Attachment A - Vicinity Map
Attachment B- License Types



Attachment C- Application



Lakeside Bistro - 8294 SW Nyberg St

I

_̂

Lakeside Bistro

Boones Ferry Rd
Bo

on
e s

Fe
rr y

Rd
Mart inazzi Ave

Tualatin-Sherwood Rd

Nyberg St

Seneca St



 

 

OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
LICENSE TYPES 

 
FULL ON-PREMISES SALES 

• Commercial Establishment 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location (this is the license that most “full-service” restaurants obtain). Sell malt beverages 
for off-site consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer. Food 
service required. Must purchase distilled liquor only from an Oregon liquor store, or from 
another Full On- Premises Sales licensee who has purchased the distilled liquor from an 
Oregon liquor store.  

• Caterer 
Allows the sale of distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider by the drink to individuals 
at off-site catered events. Food service required. 

• Passenger Carrier 
An airline, railroad, or tour boat may sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, 
and cider for consumption on the licensed premises. Food service required.  

• Other Public Location 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, where the predominant activity is not eating or drinking (for example an 
auditorium; music, dance, or performing arts facility; banquet or special event 
facility; lodging  fairground; sports stadium; art gallery; or a convention, exhibition, or 
community center). Food service required.  

• Private Club 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, but only for members and guests. Food service required.  

 
LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES 

Sell and serve malt beverages, wine, and cider for onsite consumption. Allows the sale of malt 
beverages in containers (kegs) for off-site consumption. Sell malt beverages for off-site 
consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer.  

 
OFF-PREMISES SALES 

Sell factory-sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, and cider at retail to individuals in 
Oregon for consumption off the licensed premises. Eligible to provide sample tastings of malt 
beverages, wine, and cider for consumption on the premises. Eligible to ship manufacturer-
sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, or cider directly to an Oregon resident. 
 

BREWERY PUBLIC HOUSE 
Make and sell malt beverages. Import malt beverages into and export from Oregon. Distribute 
malt beverages directly to retail and wholesale licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages made 
at the business to individuals for consumption on or off-site. 

 
WINERY 

Must principally produce wine or cider in Oregon. Manufacture, store, and export wine and 
cider. Import wine or cider If bottled, the brand of wine or cider must be owned by the licensee. 
Sell wine and cider to wholesale and retail licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages, wine, and 
cider to individuals in Oregon for consumption on or off-site. 









TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Kelsey Lewis, Management Analyst II

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5366-18 Authorizing the City Manager to
Accept Major Streets Transportation Improvement Program (MSTIP) Funds to
Complete Project Design and Construction for the Sagert Street Pedestrian
Connectivity and Enhancement Project

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept $50,000 in Major Streets Transportation
Improvement Program (MSTIP) Grant funds from Washington County to fund a portion of
design and construction for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and Enhancement
Project.

RECOMMENDATION:
Authorize the City Manager to accept $50,000 in Major Streets Transportation Improvement
Program (MSTIP) Grant funds from Washington County to serve as matching funds for
the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and Enhancement Project, which is also funded by a 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Washington County awarded the City with a $50,000 distribution from the MSTIP Opportunity
Fund as matching funds for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connection and Enhancement
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) project that was awarded earlier this year. The
MSTIP Opportunity funds and the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) will be used to
fund design and construction of the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connection and Enhancement
Project.

This resolution will allow the City to execute the remaining agreement with Washington County
to accept the MSTIP grant funding and begin the project.

This project will greatly improve pedestrian access from 72nd Avenue to Wampanoag Drive by
removing and replacing curb ramps and sidewalks to improve walkability and meet current
accessibility standards. The project will also improve pedestrian safety by adding a crosswalk to
connect low income neighborhoods with improved facilities. A new crosswalk will be added
across Sagert Street at 68th Avenue and will include a pedestrian activated signal.



The City Council approved a similar resolution to accept CDBG funds for this project in
September 2017. 

Attachments: Resolution 5366-18



Resolution No. 5366-18  1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5366-18 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT MAJOR STREETS 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (MSTIP) FUNDS TO COMPLETE PROJECT 
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION FOR THE SAGERT STREET PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 
AND ENHANCEMENT PROJECT. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin requested a $50,000 distribution from the MSTIP 
Opportunity Fund as match for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connection and Enhancement 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) project; and 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County approved the request in September 2017, contingent 
upon award of the CDBG funding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received notification from the Washington County Community 

Development Office of the award of CDBG funding for the project in February 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, receiving the MSTIP funds will provide funding for project development and 
construction of the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and Enhancement Project. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TUALATIN, OREGON that: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to accept MSTIP Grant funding from 
Washington County for project development of the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and 
Enhancement Project. 
 

Section 2.  The City Manager is authorized to execute any and all documents related to 
the grant application and to effectuate the award. 
 

Section 3.  This Resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of May, 2018. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY_________________________  
                  Mayor                          
 
ATTEST 

 
BY_________________________  
                  City Recorder 

  
 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Paul Hennon, Community Services Director

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5370-18 Authorizing the City Manager to
Acquire Property for Parkland Purposes

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The Council will consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to acquire property
located at 10325 SW Jurgens Lane to expand Jurgens Park and the Tualatin River Greenway.

RECOMMENDATION:
The staff respectfully recommends the Council adopt the attached resolution authorizing the
City Manager to acquire property located at 10325 SW Jurgens Lane to expand Jurgens Park
and the Tualatin River Greenway.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The attached resolution authorizes the City Manager to acquire property located at 10325 SW
Jurgens Lane to expand Jurgens Park and the Tualatin River Greenway (see Exhibit A,
Property Description/Locator Map, to the attached resolution).

The property consists of 5.28 acres with approximately 405 feet of Tualatin River frontage. It
would expand Jurgens Park from 15.59 to 20.87 acres, an increase of 34 percent, and expand
frontage along the Tualatin River from 593 feet to 998 feet, an increase of 68 percent.
 
The property will be purchased from a willing seller with funding from an interfund loan to be
paid back with Park System Development Charge revenues, subject to City Council
authorization under a separate Council authorization.

A goal of the Tualatin City Council is to have accessible and vibrant parks, recreational facilities
and programs, and protected natural spaces. This acquisition helps accomplish this goal in the
northwestern area of Tualatin.
 
The Tualatin Parks and Recreation Master Plan is part of the Tualatin Community Plan and it
guides the City in meeting community recreational needs through a system of parks,
preservation of the scenic value of the Tualatin River, enhancement of water quality,
preservation of fish and wildlife habitat, and provision of public pedestrian and bicycle access



preservation of fish and wildlife habitat, and provision of public pedestrian and bicycle access
within the Tualatin River Greenway. The Parks and Recreation Master Plan is currently being
updated and the community has continued to express goals for an increase in active park
facilities and conservation and restoration of natural resources. This acquisition is consistent
with both the current Tualatin Parks and Recreation Master Plan and public involvement
to-date in the master plan update project.

This acquisition is consistent with the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans within the Tualatin
Development Code and the Transportation System Plan by providing for implementation of an
interconnected system of on and off street bicycle and pedestrian facilities linking
neighborhoods, public facilities, commercial, and other employment areas.

Closing is anticipated by September, 2018. After closing, the City will undertake land
stabilization actions to ensure the site is safe and then hold it without public use until a public
involvement process can be conducted to determine how to incorporate the property into the
Jurgens Park Master Plan and funding becomes available to make desired improvements.
 
The property is within Tualatin’s Urban Growth Boundary, but not within Tualatin’s city limits.
Staff will forward a request for annexation in the future after a neighborhood meeting is held.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The City and Property Owner entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire the
property for a purchase price of $290,000 with funding from an interfund loan to be paid back
with Park System Development Charge revenues, subject to City Council authorization.

Attachments: Resolution 5370-18



Resolution No. 5370-18 - Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 5370-18 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACQUIRE PROPERTY FOR 
PARKLAND PURPOSES  

WHEREAS, a goal of the Tualatin City Council is to have accessible and vibrant 
parks, recreational facilities and programs, and protected natural spaces; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin has adopted the Tualatin Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan as part of the Tualatin Community Plan, to guide the City in meeting community recreational 
needs through a system of parks, and to preserve the scenic value of the Tualatin River, enhance 
water quality, preserve fish and wildlife habitat, and to provide public pedestrian and bicycle 
access within the Tualatin River Greenway; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire certain property located at 10325 SW Jurgens 
Lane for parkland purposes, by incorporating the property into Jurgens Park and by including the 
property within the Tualatin River Greenway, to meet public demand for additional park and 
natural area spaces. The property includes 5.28 acres and contains 405 feet of Tualatin River 
frontage; and  

WHEREAS, the City and Property Owner entered into a purchase and sale agreement to 
acquire the property for a purchase price of $290,000 with funding from an interfund loan to be 
paid back with Park System Development Charge revenues, subject to City Council authorization. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON, 
that: 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents 
necessary to acquire property located 10325 SW Jurgens Lane for parkland purposes as 
described in Exhibit A. 

Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon date of adoption. 

ADOPTED this 29th day of May, 2018. 

CITY OF TUALATIN, TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY:________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

BY:________________________________ 
City Recorder 

Approved as to legal form: 

_________________________ 
City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION / LOCATOR MAP 

Washington County 

Tax Account Number: Map 2S 1 14CB, Tax lots 1900 and 1901 

Acreage: 5.28 

Street Address: 10325 SW Jurgens Lane, Tualatin 

LOCATOR MAP 

PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
A tract of land in Section 14, Township 2 South, Range 1 West of the Willamette Meridian, in the County 
of Washington and State of Oregon, more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at an iron pipe which bears South 88°00' East 251.0 feet from the quarter section corner 
common to Sections 14 and 15, Township 2 South, Range 1 West of the Willamette Meridian, in the 
County of Washington and State of Oregon, running thence North 0°09' West 395.0 feet to an iron pipe; 
thence North 84°02' East 107.56 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 0°09' West 123.0 feet, more or less, 
to the low water mark of the Tualatin River; thence Northeasterly following the meanders of said low 
water line of the Tualatin River, a distance of 405.00 feet, more or less, to a point; thence South 6°55' 
West 580.0 feet, more or less, to an iron pipe; thence West 199.0 feet to an iron pipe in the main ditch 
and in angle of same, said iron pipe also marking the Northeast corner of Lot 25,HAZELBROOK FARM 
ON TUALATIN RIVER; thence North 88°00' West 238.0 feet to the point of beginning. 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Kathy Kaatz, Program Coordinator

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Ordinance No. 1409-18 establishing a Core Area Parking
District (CAPD) Tax Rate of $170.88 for Fiscal Year 2018/19

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Should Council approve the establishment of a new tax rate of $170.88 for the upcoming fiscal
year 2018/19?  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council consider approval of Ordinance No
1409-18.establishing a Core Area Parking District (CAPD) tax rate of $170.88 for Fiscal Year
2018/19. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Core Area Parking District Board and staff are recommending that the tax rate increases by
10% with the new rate being $170.88 for the upcoming Fiscal Year (2018/19).  The increased
tax rate is due to the updates needed for parking areas due to new ADA requirements.  This rate
is multiplied by the number of parking spaces each tenant is estimated to need within the
district.  Credits are granted for private spaces provided by each tenant. 

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of the CAPD Tax Rate will result in the following:

Retain current CAPD tax rate while maintaining current services.

Denial of the CAPD tax rate will result in the following:

A tax rate will not be established by the beginning of the fiscal year.
Require the Board to revisit an increase or decrease in the tax rate for the fiscal year
2018/19.
Parking lot ADA Requirements will not be able to be met without the increased tax rate.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Tax revenue support operation and maintenance of the Core Area Parking District.  With the



Tax revenue support operation and maintenance of the Core Area Parking District.  With the
requested tax rate, the total estimated revenue for the District is $60,000.00

Attachments: Ordinance 1409-18 



Ordinance No. 1409-18 Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1409-18 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CORE AREA PARKING DISTRICT TAX 

RATE AND CREDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 

WHEREAS, Tualatin Municipal Code (TMC) 11-3-060 requires Council to 

establish an annual tax rate and credit by ordinance for the Core Area Parking District; 

WHEREAS, the Core Area Parking District Board recommends to Council that 

the tax rate be $170.88 and that the credit remain unchanged; and 

WHEREAS, Council finds the tax rate and credit to be appropriate. 

THE CITY OF TUALATIN ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  “Schedule A” of the TMC Chapter 11-3 is amended to read as 

follows: 

The annual Core Area Parking District tax rate for Fiscal Year 2018/19 is hereby 

established as $170.88. 

The formula for the credit is as follows: 

A = (Number of on-site parking spaces provided) 

(Gross Leasable Area) x (Space Factor) 

If “A”: is greater than or equal to 1.0, the credit is 50%. 

If “A”: is less than 1.0, the credit is (“A” x 50%). 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED by the City Council this 29th day of May, 2018. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

BY _______________________ 

     City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY _______________________  
 Mayor 

ATTEST 

BY _______________________ 

 City Recorder 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Tanya Williams, Assistant to the City Manager
Sean Brady, City Attorney

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5367-18 Granting a Minor Architectural Review
to Tualatin Professional Center (TPC) Parking Lot Improvement Located at 6464
Sw Borland Road (MAR17-0041)

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consideration of Resolution No. 5367-18 approving a Minor Architectural Review Application
Filed by the  Tualatin Professional Center for Parking Lot Improvement Located at 6464 SW
Borland Road (MAR17-0041).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 5367-18.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Resolution No. 5367-18 approves, with conditions, a Minor Architectural Review application
filed by the Tualatin Professional Center (TPC) for parking lot improvements located at 6464
SW Borland Road (MAR17-0041).

On October 12, 2017, City staff approved a Minor Architectural Review application, with
conditions, for the TPC parking lot improvements. On October 26, 2017, Tualatin Professional
Center (TPC) submitted a request for review (appeal) of the staff decision. As a result, on
December 11, 2017, Council conducted a quasi-judicial public hearing and de novo review of
the Minor Architectural Review application. The hearing was continued to January 8, 2018. At
the January 8, 2018 hearing, TPC requested the record be left open to provide additional
evidence. The hearing was continued to a date certain of April 23, 2018, and continued again to
a date certain of May 14, 2018. While the hearing was pending, TPC separately sought a
variance from the Planning Commission for certain criteria involving the parking lot
improvements. The Planning Commission granted the variance on April 19, 2018. The Council
subsequently recommenced the Minor Architectural Review hearing on May 14, 2018. At the
hearing, TPC submitted new evidence, including evidence of the variance, in support of its
Minor Architectural Review application. At the conclusion of the May 14, 2018 hearing, the
Council entered into deliberation and voted to approve the application with conditions.



Attachments: Resolution 5367-18
Attachment A



Resolution No. 5367-18 Page 1 of 3  

RESOLUTION NO. 5367-18 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPLICATION 
FILED BY THE TUALATIN PROFESSIONAL CENTER FOR PARKING LOT 
IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED AT 6464 SW BORLAND ROAD (MAR17-0041). 

WHEREAS, Tualatin Professional Center (TPC) submitted an application with the 
City for a Minor Architectural Review (MAR), for property located at 6464 SW Borland 
Road, Tualatin, Oregon, 98062;  

WHEREAS, MAR17-0041 was approved with conditions by staff on October 12, 
2017; 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2017, TPC submitted a request for review; 

WHEREAS, Council conducted a quasi-judicial public hearing and de novo 
review on December 11, 2017, which hearing was continued to January 8, 2018; 

WHEREAS, at the January 8, 2018 hearing, the applicant requested the record 
be left open to provide additional evidence and the hearing was continued to a date 
certain of April 23, 2018, and continued again to a date certain of May 14, 2018; 

WHEREAS, while the hearing was pending, the applicant separately sought a 
variance from certain criteria from the Planning Commission, which was granted on 
April 19, 2018 (VAR 18-0001); 

WHEREAS, the applicant submitted new evidence, including evidence of the 
variance, at the May 14, 2018 hearing; and 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the May 14, 2018 hearing the Council entered 
into deliberation and voted to approve the application (with conditions). 

BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  TUALATIN, 
OREGON, that: 

Section 1.  Findings.  The Council adopts the findings which are attached as 
Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference.  

Section 2. Conditions. The Minor Architectural Review (MAR17-0041) for 
Tualatin Professional Center (TPC), which consists of Attachments 101 to 104 of the 
staff report dated May 14, 2018 and which is incorporated by reference, is approved 
with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to applying for permits on the subject site, the applicant must submit one
revised paper plan set—24 x 36, a paper narrative, and electronically in Adobe
PDF file format—for review and approval to the Planning Division that meet the
conditions of approval below. The narrative must explain how and on what page
each condition of approval has been met. The submittal must contain page



Resolution No. 5367-18 Page 2 of 3  

numbers and a table of contents. No piecemeal submittals will be accepted. Each 
submittal will be reviewed in two (2) weeks. 

2. The applicant must submit plans that illustrates a six foot wide ADA compliant
walkway between the main entrance of the southern building of the Tualatin
Professional Center complex (Building D) and SW Sagert Street and install to
approved plan set pursuant to TDC 73.160(1)(a)(i).

3. The applicant must submit a landscape plan that illustrates areas within the
defined project area that are not occupied by buildings, parking spaces,
driveways, drive aisles, and pedestrian areas are landscaped and install to
approved plan set pursuant to TDC 73.310(3).

4. The applicant must submit a revised landscape plan that notes a clear zone will
be provided at the proposed access drive entrances vertically between a
maximum of thirty inches and a minimum of eight feet as measured from the
ground level pursuant to TDC 73.340(1).

5. The applicant must install landscape areas not less than five feet in width on
each side of the southern two access drives located off of SW Sagert Street that
extend for a distance of at least twenty-five feet from the back of public sidewalk
pursuant to the applicant’s revised plan set illustrated in Attachment 104- Sheet
C300 dated May 2, 2018 and pursuant to Resolution No. 6-18TPC.

6. The applicant must install two on-site access drives that are thirty-two feet wide
for the first twenty-five feet from the back of public sidewalk pursuant to the
applicant’s revised plan set illustrated in Attachment 104 - C300 dated May 2,
2018 and pursuant to Resolution No. 6-18TPC.

7. The applicant must apply for and obtain a Public Works Permit for all work within
public right-of-way and an Erosion Control Permit for all disturbed area.

a. Provide an engineered plan that shows plan and profile of the proposed
driveway connections and proposed pedestrian connections. All
improvements must match back of sidewalk grades currently being
constructed by Lennar Homes as part of public works permit number PW16-
0211. Plan must meet requirements of Engineering Division for review and
approval pursuant to the Tualatin Public Works Construction Code and must
be approved by the Engineering Division.

b. Show back of sidewalk grades that match the elevations of SW Sagert Street
right-of-way improvements currently being constructed by Lennar Homes as
approved in Public Works Permit No. PW16-0211.



Resolution No. 5367-18 Page 3 of 3  

c. If proposed pedestrian connection to the Sagert Street sidewalk is the ADA
accessible route to the public right-of-way, then improvements in the right-of-
way must meet ADA criteria set forth in the 2010 Public Rights of Way Design
Guidelines (PROWAG), including running slope, cross slope, and all other
relevant requirements.

8. The applicant must label both of the southern-most parking stalls (one to the
west and one to the east) of the western access drive subcompact stalls,
pursuant to TDC 73.380(1).

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon adoption. 

ADOPTED by the City Council this 29th day of May, 2018. 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY 
Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

BY 
City Recorder



Res. No. 5367-18 / MAR 17-0041 – Attachment A 
ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

Proposal 

KPFF Consulting Engineers, on behalf of the Tualatin Professional Center (TPC) submitted a Minor 
Architectural Review (MAR) application 17-0041 on August 21, 2017 to adjust the southern two access 
drives previously approved through AR83‐06, LP83-01, and Development Agreement 84-16657. 
Modifications and improvements to the southern parking lot, landscaping, and pedestrian network were 
also included in the proposal. 

Staff approved the MAR 17-0041 proposal with conditions on October 12, 2017. The applicant submitted 
the subject Request for Review on October 26, 2017. This item was first heard by the City Council on 
December 11, 2017. The applicant requested that the record be left open to provide new evidence at the 
January 8, 2018 hearing and the hearing was continued to a date certain of April 23, 2018, then continued 
to a date certain of May 14, 2018. VAR18-0001 was approved by the Planning Commission Resolution 6-
18TPC (Attachment 103) on April 19, 2018. New evidence, including evidence of the variance was 
presented at the May 14, 2018, and MAR 17-0041 was approved with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to applying for permits on the subject site, the applicant must submit one revised paper plan
set—24 x 36, a paper narrative, and electronically in Adobe PDF file format—for review and
approval to the Planning Division that meet the conditions of approval below. The narrative must
explain how and on what page each condition of approval has been met. The submittal must
contain page numbers and a table of contents. No piecemeal submittals will be accepted. Each
submittal will be reviewed in two (2) weeks.

This condition requires the applicant to submit a revised plan set to address the conditions of
approval. The applicant has satisfied this condition through new evidence contained in Attachment
104. 

2. The applicant must submit plans that illustrates a six foot wide ADA compliant walkway between
the main entrance of the southern building of the Tualatin Professional Center complex (Building
D) and SW Sagert Street and install to approved plan set pursuant to TDC73.160(1)(a)(i).

The applicant has satisfied this condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet C300, dated 5/2/2018, 
Keynote 4. 

3. The applicant must submit a landscape plan that illustrates areas within the defined project area
that are not occupied by buildings, parking spaces, driveways, drive aisles, and pedestrian areas
are landscaped and install to approved plan set pursuant to TDC 73.310(3).

The applicant has satisfied this condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet L200, dated 4/23/2018.

4. The applicant must submit a revised landscape plan that notes a clear zone will be provided at the
proposed access drive entrances vertically between a maximum of thirty inches and a minimum
of eight feet as measured from the ground level pursuant to TDC 73.340(1).

The applicant has satisfied this condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet L200, dated 4/23/2018.

5. The applicant must install landscape areas not less than five feet in width on each side of the
southern two access drives located off of SW Sagert Street that extend for a distance of at least

Page 1



twenty-five feet from the back of public sidewalk pursuant to the applicants revised plan set as 
seen in Attachment 104- Sheet C300 dated May 2, 2018 and pursuant to Resolution No. 6-18TPC. 

The applicant has satisfied this modified condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet C300, dated 
5/2/2018. 

6. The applicant must install two on-site access drives that are thirty-two feet wide for the first
twenty-five feet from back of sidewalk pursuant to the applicants revised plan set as seen in
Attachment 104 - C300 dated May 2, 2018 and pursuant to Resolution No. 6-18TPC.

The applicant has satisfied this modified condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet C300, dated
5/2/2018.

7. The applicant must apply for and obtain a Public Works Permit for all work within public right-of-
way and an Erosion Control Permit for all disturbed area.
a. Provide an engineered plan that shows plan and profile of the proposed driveway connections

and proposed pedestrian connections. All improvements must match back of sidewalk grades
currently being constructed by Lennar Homes as part of public works permit number PW16-
0211. Plan must meet requirements of Engineering Division for review and approval pursuant
to the Tualatin Public Works Construction Code and must be approved by the Engineering
Division.

b. Show back of sidewalk grades that match the elevations of SW Sagert Street right-of-way
improvements currently being constructed by Lennar Homes as approved in Public Works
Permit No. PW16-0211.

c. If proposed pedestrian connection to the Sagert Street sidewalk is the ADA accessible route
to the public right-of-way, then improvements in the right-of-way must meet ADA criteria set
forth in the 2010 Public Rights of Way Design Guidelines (PROWAG), including running slope,
cross slope, and all other relevant requirements.

The applicant has satisfied this condition in Attachment 104 - Sheet C200, dated 5/2/2018; Sheet 
C300, dated 5/2/2018; Sheet C400, dated 5/2/2018; and Sheet C501, dated 5/2/2018. 

8. The applicant must label both of the southern-most parking stalls (one to the west and one to the
east) of the western access drive subcompact stalls, pursuant to TDC 73.380(1).

The applicant has agreed to this condition and will label the appropriate stalls.

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Tanya Williams, Assistant to the City Manager
Sean Brady, City Attorney

DATE: 05/29/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5369-18 Granting a Variance to the Separation
Requirements of Wireless Communication Facilities (VAR17-00001)

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consideration of Resolution No. 5369-18 Granting a Variance to the Separation Requirements
of Wireless Communication Facilities (VAR17-00001).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 5369-18.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Resolution No. 5369-18 grants a Variance to the Separation Requirements of Wireless
Communication Facilities (VAR17-00001).
Acom Consulting submitted an application for a variance from the 1,500 foot separation
requirement between wireless facilities in order to locate a wireless facility at 10290 SW
Tualatin Road. A hearing was held before the Planning Commission, which granted the
variance on January 18, 2018. Spectrasite Communications (a subsidiary of American Tower)
filed a request for review (appeal) with Council. The Council held a de novo review and public
hearing on April 9, 2018. At the public hearing, Spectrasite requested the record be left open for
seven (7) days. Acom did not object to the request and the Council granted the request for the
record to be left open until April 16, 2018. The record closed on April 16, 2018, and the applicant
subsequently filed its written response on April 23, 2018. On May 14, 2018, Council entered into
deliberations and voted to approve the variance.

The Findings and Conclusions in support of the decision are contained in Exhibit A to
Resolution No. 5369-18. The Variance Application filed is attached as Exhibit B to Resolution
No. 5369-18.

Attachments: Resolution 5369-18
Attachment A
Attachment B



Attachment B



Resolution No. 5369-18 Page 1 of 2  

RESOLUTION NO. 5369-18 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A VARIANCE TO THE SEPARATION 
REQUIREMENTS OF WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES (VAR17-
00001). 

WHEREAS, Acom Consulting submitted an application for a variance from the 
1,500 foot separation requirement between wireless facilities in order to locate a 
wireless facility at 10290 SW Tualatin Road ; and  

WHEREAS, a hearing was held before the Planning Commission, which granted 
the variance on January 18, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Spectrasite Communications (a subsidiary of American Tower) filed 
a request for review (appeal) with Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Council held a de novo review and public hearing on April 9, 
2018, at which the appellant requested the record be left open for seven (7) days; and 

WHEREAS, the record closed on April 16, 2018, and the applicant subsequently 
filed its written response on April 23, 2018; 

WHEREAS, the Council entered into deliberation on May 14, 2018 and voted to 
approve the variance. 

BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  TUALATIN, 
OREGON, that: 

Section 1.  Findings.  The Council adopts the findings, which are attached as 
Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference, and finds the applicant proved compliance 
with both TDC 33.024(1)(a) and (b).  

Section 2. The Council grants the variance application (VAR17-0001), which is 
attached as Exhibit B, and incorporated by reference. 

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon adoption. 

ADOPTED by the City Council this 29th day of May, 2018. 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY 
Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
BY 



Resolution No. 5369-18         Page 2 of 2  

 City Attorney ATTEST: 
 
BY    

City Recorder

 



POR DURHAM WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY (WCF) 
 

VARIANCE APPLICATION (VAR-17-0001) 
 

ATTACHMENT A: ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 
 
The issue before the Tualatin City Council is consideration of a Variance (VAR) request for a Wireless 
Communication Facility (WCF) separation that would allow the construction of a new 100-foot-tall 
monopole within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF. American Tower Company (ATC) operates the existing 
tower located at 10699 SW Herman Road which is approximately 800 feet southwest of the proposed 
WCF location. The proposed WCF would be located at 10290 SW Tualatin Road (Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 
000800) on a property owned by Tote ‘N Stow which operates as a storage facility for recreational 
vehicles.  The proposed WCF is intended to accommodate wireless antennas and related equipment from 
two carriers, Verizon Wireless (Verizon) and T-Mobile. 

Tualatin Development Code (TDC) 73.470(9) does not allow a new WCF tower within 1,500 feet of an existing 
tower unless a variance is granted pursuant to TDC 33.025(1).  TDC 33.025(1) allows for a variance under 
two separate and independent grounds.  First, TDC 33.025(1)(a) allows for a variance if the existing WCF 
within 1,500 feet cannot accommodate the proposed wireless facilities and provide the necessary wireless 
capacity or coverage the proposed WCF is intended to provide.  Second, TDC 33.025(1)(b) allows for a 
variance if the proposed WCF location includes tall, dense evergreen trees that will screen at least 50% of 
the proposed WCF from the RL District or from a small lot subdivision in the RML District.  The Applicant 
requested approval of the Application under both TDC 33.025(1)(a) and (b). 

The Planning Commission initially considered the Application and held multiple public hearings on the 
matter.  The Planning Commission unanimously approved the Application under both TDC 33.025(1)(a) 
and (b) as set forth in the Planning Commission’s Resolution No. TDC-609-17.   

ATC filed an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision pursuant to TDC 31.078. Pursuant to TDC 
31.078(8), the City Council reviewed the Planning Commission decision de novo. 

The City Council conducted a public hearing for the appeal on April 9, 2018 and accepted written and oral 
testimony from staff and the parties.  At ATC’s request, the City Council left the record open pursuant to 
ORS 197.763(6) to allow the parties to submit additional written evidence and argument, and the Applicant’s 
final written argument.    

On May 14, 2018, the City Council deliberated and rendered a decision.  After considering all of the 
evidence and arguments in the record, the City Council concluded that the Applicant satisfied both TDC 
33.025(1)(a) and (b) based on the substantial evidence in the record.  Accordingly, the City Council rejects 
ATC’s appeal and approves the Application for the reasons set forth in this Analysis and Findings.       

Section 33.025 – Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless Communication Facility. 

No variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication facilities shall be 
granted by the Planning Commission unless it can be shown that the following criteria are met. The 
criteria for granting a variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication 
facilities shall be limited to this section, and shall not include the standard variance criteria of Section 
33.020, Conditions for Granting a Variance that is not for a Sign or a Wireless Communication Facility. 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 2 of 8 

(1) The City may grant a variance from the provisions of TDC 73.470(9), which requires a 1500-foot 
separation between WCFs, providing the applicant demonstrates compliance with (a) or (b) 
below. 
(a) coverage and capacity. 

(i) It is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity or coverage the tower 
is intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites more than 
1,500 feet from an existing wireless communication facility or from the proposed 
location of a wireless communication facility for which an application has been filed 
and not denied. The needed capacity or coverage shall be documented with a Radio 
Frequency report; 

Findings:  The Applicant demonstrated that it is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity 
or coverage the proposed WCF is intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites 
more than 1,500 feet from an existing wireless communication facility.  Figures C-1 and C-2 below show 
Verizon’s capacity and coverage objectives for this site.  Figure C-1 shows existing conditions and Figure 
C-2 shows the conditions with the proposed site.  Attachment D, p.23 & 139-47. 

Before proposing this new site, the Applicant and Verizon did extensive research looking for opportunities 
in the area to collocate on existing towers, buildings or other structures.  In order to meet Verizon’s 
coverage and capacity objectives, it is necessary to site the wireless facilities within the search ring 
provided by Verizon’s Radio Frequency (RF) department.  Moving outside this search ring is technically 
not practicable and has adverse effects on providing the needed coverage and capacity objectives the 
tower is intended to provide, which include nearby high-traffic residential areas to the North.  Siting 
outside the search ring can also create interference with other nearby network sites where coverage may 
overlap.  Verizon’s RF department provided a search ring that designated the area in which the wireless 
facilities could be located in order to provide the needed capacity and coverage for this site, as shown in 
Figure C-3 below.  As noted in TDC 33.025(1)(a)(iii) below, there are no available buildings, light or utility 
poles, water towers or other structures with adequate height to meet the capacity and coverage 
objectives in the search ring area.   Attachment D, p.135-37. 

Although there are no existing towers within the search area, the ATC tower is located relatively close to 
the search ring area and is within a 1,500-foot radius of the proposed WCF site.  The Applicant and Verizon 
evaluated whether or not the ATC tower could accommodate the wireless facilities and satisfy the capacity 
and coverage objectives.  The Applicant demonstrated that the ATC tower would not provide the needed 
capacity and coverage objectives due to lack of sufficient height and signal interference that would be 
caused by the existing tall trees located on the site as noted in Verizon’s “RF Usage and Facility 
Justification” report.  Additionally, T-Mobile intends to collocate a wireless facility on the proposed WCF 
and it determined that the existing ATC tower will not meet their coverage and capacity requirements 
either, as noted in the letter from T-Mobile RF.  ATC acknowledged that the ATC tower cannot accommodate 
these two wireless facilities and provide the intended wireless capacity or coverage under the existing 
circumstances.  There are no other existing towers located in or around the search area.    Attachment D, 
p.135, 148-53. 

The Applicant also evaluated locating the proposed WCF tower within an area inside the search ring and 
outside the 1,500-foot radius of the ATC tower.  No sites in this area are practicable because they are not 
available, are not feasible alternatives because they would require locating a new tower in another part 
of the ML zone closer to residential areas and there is no existing screening, and/or are in the RML or RMH 
zone, where a WCF is prohibited or requires a conditional use permit, height limitations apply, and it 
would be very visible to nearby residential areas.  ATC did not challenge these conclusions or identify an 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 3 of 8 

alternative site within the search ring area that were available and practicable to provide the needed 
capacity or coverage.    Attachment D, p.135-38. 

  

Figure C-1: Existing Coverage Figure C-2: Proposed Coverage 

 

 
Figure C-3: Search Ring and 1,500-Foot Separate Overlap Map 

For these reasons, the City Council finds that this criteria is met.  

(ii) The collocation report, required as part of the Architectural Review submittal, shall 
document that the existing WCFs within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF, or a WCF 
within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF for which application has been filed and not 
denied, cannot be modified to accommodate another provider; and 

Findings: The Applicant demonstrated that the ATC tower cannot be modified to accommodate the 
Verizon and T-Mobile wireless facilities and satisfy their capacity and coverage needs.  As previously 
noted, there is no dispute among the parties that the existing ATC tower cannot accommodate the wireless 
facilities and provide the intended wireless capacity or coverage due to lack of sufficient height and signal 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 4 of 8 

interference from the surrounding trees.  The only way to address these deficiencies is to increase the 
height of the ATC tower and/or remove the surrounding trees that will cause the signal interference.  The 
ATC tower cannot be modified to resolve these deficiencies in a manner consistent with TDC 
33.025(1)(a)(ii) for the following reasons.  

The ATC tower is a 130-foot monopole tower that required a height variance when it was originally 
proposed because it exceeded the 100-foot height limitation.  The City Council approved the variance to 
allow for a 130-foot ATC tower pursuant to Resolution No. 3672-50, dated January 24, 2000, and its attached 
findings.  Since the ATC tower already exceeds the allowed height, any increase in height would require 
another variance approval.  Attachment C, p.28; Attachment D, p.37-46. 

Neither TDC 73.470(9), which contains the 1,500-foot separation requirement, nor TDC 33.025(1)(a)(ii) 
require an applicant to consider modifications to an existing tower that have not yet submitted for additional 
land use permits or approvals in order to make those modifications.  The City Council does not interpret TDC 
33.025(1)(a)(ii) as requiring the Applicant to rule out existing towers that could accommodate the wireless 
facilities, but for which no application for modification has been submitted or filed. The code requires only 
for the applicant to consider those towers in existence, and those which have pending applications. It 
would be almost impossible to rule out any existing tower under such an interpretation since theoretically 
the existing tower owner could request a variance for virtually any modification even if it was highly 
unlikely the City would ever approve such a variance.  Attachment B, p.5-6. 

To the extent an applicant is required to consider an existing tower that needs additional land use permits or 
approvals, it is expressly limited to those towers for which the required application has already been filed.  
TDC 73.470(9) defines the types of “wireless communication facility monopoles” that must be considered for 
purposes of satisfying the tower separation requirement as follows: “For purposes of this section, a wireless 
communication facility monopole shall include wireless communication facility monopole for which the City 
has issued a development permit, or for which an application has been filed and not denied.”  (Emphasis 
added).  Similarly, TDC 33.025(1)(a)(i) requires an applicant to demonstrate that it is technically not 
practicable to collocate from “an existing wireless communication facility or from the proposed location of a 
wireless communication facility for which an application has been filed and not denied.”  (Emphasis added).  
This language demonstrates that the City Council intended to limit the types of towers that must be 
considered to those that either have the necessary permits or have already filed for the necessary permits.  
ATC never filed a land use application for an additional antenna or an increase in height.  Verizon and T-Mobile 
have existing coverage and capacity gaps that need to be addressed and have no assurance that ATC will file 
or obtain the required variance approval.  TDC 73.470(9) and TDC 33.025(1) were not intended to give existing 
tower operators such broad authority to force carriers to wait until the operator can file for and see if it is 
possible to obtain the necessary approvals to modify the existing tower.  Attachment B, p.5-6. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that it would not be required to obtain City approval to increase the height 
of the 130-foot tower because the City approved the ATC tower at 146 feet.  ATC’s claim is inconsistent with 
the express language of the City Council’s Resolution and findings approving the ATC tower, which expressly 
limits the height of the tower to 130-feet and only allows for an additional 16 feet for the antenna.  ATC 
admits that it would be required to increase the height of the tower to accommodate the two wireless 
facilities in this case and neither wireless facility proposal includes a 16-foot whip antenna.   Moreover, ATC 
claimed that it could accommodate the wireless facilities with a 150-foot tower, not a 146-foot tower.  
Attachment A, p.2; Attachment B, p.4-5; Attachment D, p.37-46. 

The City Council finds Section 6409 of the Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act (Spectrum Act) permits 
a carrier to increase the height of an existing tower by “10% or by the height of one additional antenna array 
with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty feet, whichever is greater.”  14 C.F.R. 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 5 of 8 

1.40001(b)(7)(i).  Ten percent (10%) of 130 feet is 13 feet, not 20 feet.  More importantly, ATC is only allowed 
to increase the height of the tower necessary to accommodate “one additional antenna array.”  Additionally, 
the Spectrum Act cannot be used to force the City to agree to a taller ATC tower because the City is the owner 
of the property where it is located.  The Spectrum Act only affects the regulation of these towers and does 
not apply to local jurisdictions acting in their proprietary capacity.  As the property owner, the City is entitled 
to deny or condition any ATC request to increase the height of the ATC tower in its discretion.  Attachment B, 
p.4-5; Attachment C, p.30-31. 

Additionally, ATC cannot accommodate Verizon’s coverage and capacity objectives because Verizon already 
rejected a 150-foot tower.  The Applicant submitted a RF Usage and Facility Justification analysis prepared by 
a Verizon RF engineer.  The Verizon RF engineer’s analysis concluded that, even if the height of the ATC Tower 
was increased, it still would not satisfy Verizon’s coverage and capacity objectives, in particular the residential 
area north of SW Tualatin Rd which is the primary area of concern for this new facility.  Although ATC 
submitted its own analysis, that analysis is not as reliable because it was prepared by a Principal Sales Engineer 
as opposed to an RF engineer, ATC has not spoken with Verizon about the coverage and capacity objectives 
for this site, does not have access to all of the same network data and other proprietary information as 
Verizon’s RF engineers do, and it cannot speak for Verizon.  Verizon’s RF Usage and Facility Justification 
analysis represents Verizon’s position on this matter and it clearly states that the ATC Tower, even if increased 
in height, will not work.  Verizon’s RF analysis is the most reliable and relevant evidence on this issue.  
Attachment B, p.3-4; Attachment D, p.47, 60-67. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that the Application should be denied because T-Mobile indicated a 
willingness to switch to ATC’s tower shortly before the record was closed.  T-Mobile’s two sentence Letter of 
Intent to Enter Tenant License Agreement, dated April 9, 2018, the same date as the appeal hearing, is 
perfunctory and is missing material terms, and does not even state the required height of the ATC Tower 
necessary to achieve T-Mobile’s coverage and capacity objectives.  Moreover, the Application can only be 
denied if the ATC tower can accommodate both Verizon and T-Mobile, and Verizon has not changed its 
position that the ATC tower cannot satisfy its capacity and coverage objectives.  Attachment B, p.3; 
Attachment D, p.60-67. 

Although ATC appears to have abandoned this argument in its appeal, the City Council rejects ATC’s claim 
before the Planning Commission that it could accommodate the wireless facilities on the ATC tower by 
removing the trees on the ATC tower site.  The variance approval for the ATC tower relied heavily on the 
screening effect of the surrounding trees to justify the variance to the height standard, and therefore ATC 
would be required to seek additional City approval, through Architectural Review, or seek a new variance to 
remove additional trees.  Since the removal of all of these screening trees would undermine the key 
justification for granting the variance in the first place, it is highly unlikely that ATC could obtain the approval 
necessary to remove all of these trees.  ATC has not applied to obtain removal of any trees “[i]t is necessary 
to remove the tree to construct proposed improvements based on Architectural Review approval, building 
permit, or approval of a Subdivision or Partition Review,” nor are the trees diseased or damaged.  See TDC 
34.230(1).  ATC also needs the City to consent as the landowner to the removal of these trees.     Finally, ATC 
suggested that it may be possible to top or significantly trim the trees in order to remove the portion of the 
trees that are interfering with RF signals.  This proposal is not feasible because topping or significantly 
trimming the trees will look terrible, significantly undermining the visual screening that the trees currently 
provide, and would also require a modification to the variance approval and consent of the City and adjacent 
property owner.    Attachment D, p.37-46, 58-59, 68-75 & 175. 

Originally, ATC argued that the ATC Tower could accommodate two additional carriers by removing the 
screening trees located within a 155-foot radius of the ATC Tower and seeking a variance to increase the 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 6 of 8 

height of the ATC Tower by 20 feet.  After it became apparent that removing the screening trees was neither 
desirable nor feasible, ATC changed its position at the last Planning Commission hearing and argued that it 
could accommodate two additional carriers without removing the screening trees.  In its written appeal, ATC 
changed its position again and claimed that it could accommodate two additional carriers by increasing the 
height of the ATC Tower to 166 feet and was entitled to this increase under the Spectrum Act.  When it 
became apparent that ATC could not increase the tower to 166 feet, ATC claimed it could accommodate two 
additional carriers by increasing the ATC Tower to only 150 feet.  It appears from the constant evolution of 
ATC’s position that ATC does not currently have a plan to accommodate additional antenna.  Attachment B, 
p.2-3. 

The Applicant provided argument and evidence to support these conclusions.  The mere fact that ATC was 
unable to overcome the Applicant’s argument and evidence does not mean that the Planning Commission 
shifted the burden of proof to ATC.  The Planning Commission simply concluded that the Applicant’s legal 
arguments and evidence were more persuasive.   Attachment C, p.31.  

For these reasons, the City Council finds that this criteria is met. 

(iii) There are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers on which 
antennas may be located and still provide the approximate coverage the tower is 
intended to provide. 

Findings: There is no dispute that there are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers 
with adequate height to meet the capacity and coverage objectives of the wireless facilities in or around 
the search ring area.  Additionally, the City Council notes that the maximum structure height (outside of 
flagpoles and WCFs) in the ML zone is 50 feet.  Attachment D, p.136 & 157. 

For these reasons, the City Council finds that this criteria is met. 

For all of the reasons provided in this section, the City Council finds that the Application satisfied TDC 
33.025(1)(a). 

(b) site characteristics. The proposed monopole location includes tall, dense evergreen trees 
that will screen at least 50% of the proposed monopole from the RL District or from a small 
lot subdivision in the RML District. 

Findings: The Applicant demonstrated that the proposed location for the WCF includes tall, dense 
evergreen trees that will screen at least 50% of the WCF from the Low Density Residential (RL) planning 
district in the area.  This criteria is an independent basis for approving the variance and does not require 
the Applicant to demonstrate that the ATC tower is not a viable option.  Based on the photosims and 
related information regarding the property and surrounding area, the City Council concluded that the 
proposed location has tall, dense evergreen trees that will screen at least 50% of the proposed tower from 
the residential districts and therefore complies with TDC 33.025(1)(b). 

The subject property is bound on the north by a RL planning district, directly on the east, west and south 
by a ML planning district. The surrounding area to the east includes a Medium Low Density (RML) planning 
district, but there are no small lot subdivisions in this RML district and therefore it is not relevant under 
TDC 33.025(1)(b).  Attachment D, p.5-7 & 10-11. 

The Applicant provided several photosims prepared by a professional consultant who performed a balloon 
test.  The balloon test ensures that the height and location depicted in the photosims are accurate.  The 
photosims were taken in early January, in the dead of winter when deciduous trees do not have their 
leaves, in order to show a worst case scenario.  The Applicant sought input from the City staff before it 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 7 of 8 

performed the photosims, in particular the number and vantage points for the photosims.  The Applicant 
provided five photosims from various vantage points in these locations, some of which are closer to the 
site and some further away, based on its consultation with the City staff.  Attachment D, p.10-18. 

These photosims demonstrate that the proposed location for the WCF includes tall, dense evergreen trees 
that will screen at least 50% of the WCF.  Photosim #1 shows that looking south from the RL planning 
district toward the site tall evergreens completely block the photosim of the property. Photosim #2 is 
from the ML planning district and although the criterion does not require screening from ML this photo 
shows there are tall evergreens and other dense trees along the eastern property line. Photosim #3 was 
taken from the RMH and RML area to the east, which shows that evergreens are present and other tall 
trees but the monopole is not as well screened as from other vantage points. However, RMH and RML 
area are not relevant vantage points under TDC 33.025(1)(b).  Photosim #4 is from the border of the RL 
and ML planning districts, and in these photos evergreens are not as prevalent as the other vantage points 
but the tower is only somewhat visible beyond an existing industrial building.  Photosim #5 is taken from 
the RL planning district looking southeast.  Evergreens are present in this photo as well as other tall trees 
that help screen the majority of the tower.  The photo simulations of the proposed monopole in photosims 
#1, #4 and #5 are most applicable given that the criterion is specific to screening from an RL district or an 
RML district with a small lot subdivision. These photosims show that overall at least 50% of the WCF will 
be screened by tall dense evergreen trees from the RL planning district.  Attachment B, p.5-6; Attachment 
D, p.10-18. 

The purpose and intent of TDC 33.025(1)(b) is to allow a variance if the visual impact of the proposed 
tower is minimized on residential zoned properties due to screening from trees.  So the key criteria or 
perspective for TDC 33.025(1)(b) is the residential zoned properties. This interpretation is particularly 
relevant in this case given how far the residential properties are from the proposed tower.  In light of this 
distance, the trees immediately around the proposed WCF are less significant than they would be if the 
tower was being proposed immediately adjacent to a RL District.  Nonetheless, there are numerous tall, 
dense evergreen trees located on the subject property, particularly on the north end of the property where 
the vast majority of the RL District is located, as shown in the Applicant’s detailed tree inventory (Durham 
Tree Inventory).  Attachment B, p.6-8 & 10-21; Attachment C, p.33. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that there are no tall, dense evergreen trees located on the subject 
property where the tower will be located.  Dan Zike, Manager of the Tote-N-Stow property where the 
Applicant’s WCF is proposed, disputed that claim at the appeal hearing.  As the property manager, Mr. Zike 
knows the subject property better than ATC.  The Applicant also provided the Durham Tree Inventory that 
shows numerous tall, dense evergreen trees located on the subject property, particularly on the north end of 
the property where the vast majority of the RL District is located.  The Durham Tree Inventory shows that 
there are tall, dense evergreen trees along the entire northern boundary of the property and a second set of 
tall, dense evergreen trees toward the middle of the property between the proposed tower and RL District.  
Additionally, there are tall, dense evergreen trees along portions of the eastern boundary of the property that 
will screen the tower from the RL District to the north-east of the property.  The Durham Tree Inventory 
demonstrates that there are numerous tall, dense evergreen trees located on the subject property.  
Attachment B, p.6-8 & 10-21; Attachment C, p.33; Attachment D, p.10-18. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that the City cannot consider the screening impacts of the buildings in the 
surrounding area.  While the Applicant must demonstrate that there are tall evergreen trees in the location 
that provide screening, the buildings are part of the landscape that factors into the visual impacts.  If less than 
50% of the proposed tower is not visible from a particular vantage point due to topography, elevation, 
buildings or other structures, TDC 33.025(1)(b) does not require the City to ignore or discount these 



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
May 29, 2018 
Page 8 of 8 

surrounding features.  These features are part of the existing landscape that the City must consider in 
evaluating the visual impact of the proposed tower and the extent to which the surrounding trees screen 
the tower.     

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that the photosims are insufficient.  TDC 33.025(1)(b) does not require 
a specific type or amount of photosims.  The City staff signed off on the Applicant’s photosims and the 
Planning Commission concluded that they were sufficient.  ATC failed to provide any information about 
its photosims, submitted for the first time at the appeal hearing, and even ATC’s own photosims 
demonstrates that at least 50% of the proposed tower will be screened from the RL District.  Attachment 
B, p.7-8; Attachment C, p.33. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that the trees that provide screening should be disregarded because 
they are not evergreen. Mr. Zike’s testimony and the Durham Tree Inventory shows that there are 
numerous evergreen trees that will provide screening.  Additionally, the photosims undermine ATC’s claim 
because they were taken in early January, in the dead of winter when deciduous trees do not have their 
leaves.  Therefore, the photosims show a worst case scenario.  The fact that the trees provide more than 
50% screening even in the middle of the winter demonstrates that ATC’s argument is incorrect.  
Attachment B, p.7-8; Attachment C, p.33; Attachment D, p.10-18. 

The City Council rejects ATC’s claim that the Applicant did not demonstrate “exceptional or extraordinary 
circumstances” to justify the variance request pursuant to TDC 33.020.  TDC 33.020 is not an applicable 
approval criteria and it expressly provides that it is not applicable to WCF variance requests.  The fact that 
the City expressly excluded WCF variance requests from TDC 33.020 demonstrates that the City did not 
want to impose this variance criteria on WCFs.  Attachment B, p.4-5 

For these reasons, the City Council finds that this criteria is met and the Application satisfied TDC 
33.025(1)(b). 

SUMMARY OF ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

Based on the application materials, written and oral testimony from the parties and the analysis and 
findings presented above, VAR-17-0001 meets all of the criteria set forth in both TDC 32.025(1)(a) and (b), 
“Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless Communication Facility.”  Therefore, the City Council 
rejects ATC’s appeal and approves the Application for the reasons set forth in this Analysis and Findings. 



 “NECESSARY PARTIES” 
MARKED BELOW 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION SUBMITTAL 
ANNEXATION CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

 ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW PLAN MAP AMENDMENT  OTHER:  VARIANCE 
CASE/FILE:  VAR17-0001 (Community Development Dept.:  Planning Division) .

PR
O

PO
SA

L To request a variance from the 1,500-foot separation requirement between wireless communication facilities 
(WCFs) pursuant to Tualatin Development Code (TDC) 73.490(9). 

PROPERTY 

  n/a

Name of Application POR DURHAM 

Street Address 10290 SW Tualatin Rd 

Tax Map and Lot No(s). 2S1 23B 000800 

Planning District Light Manufacturing (ML)   Overlays  NRPO Flood Plain 

Previous Applications AR86-21         Additional Applications: CIO  INDUSTRIAL 

D
A

TE
S 

Receipt of 
application 05/19/2017 Deemed 

Complete 10/02/2017 
C

O
N

TA
C

T 
Name: Charles H. Benson III 

Notice of application submittal 10/02/2017 Title:   ASSOCIATE PLANNER 

Project Status / Development Review meeting 03/23/2017 E-mail:  CBENSON@tualatin.gov 

Comments due for staff report 10/23/2017 Phone:  503-691-3029 

Public meeting:   ARB     TPC   n/a 11/16/2017 

City Council (CC)  n/a 

City Staff 
  City Manager  
  Building Official 
  Chief of Police 
  City Attorney 
  City Engineer 
  Community Development Director 
  Community Services Director 
  Economic Development liaison 
  Engineering Associate* 
  Finance Director 
  GIS technician(s) 
  IS Manager 
  Operations Director* 
  Parks and Recreation Coordinator 
  Planning Manager 
  Street/Sewer Supervisor 
  Water Supervisor 

Neighboring Cities 
  Durham 
  King City Planning Commission 
  Lake Oswego 
  Rivergrove PC 
  Sherwood Planning Dept. 
  Tigard Community Development 
Dept. 

  Wilsonville Planning Division 

Counties 
  Clackamas County Dept. of  
Transportation and Development 

  Washington County Dept. of  
Land Use and Transportation (ARs) 

  Washington County Long Range Planning 
(LRP) (Annexations) 

Regional Government 
  Metro 

School Districts 
  Lake Oswego School Dist. 7J 
  Sherwood SD 88J 
  Tigard-Tualatin SD 23J (TTSD) 
  West Linn-Wilsonville SD 3J 

State Agencies 
  Oregon Dept. of Aviation 
  Oregon Dept. of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
  Oregon Dept. of Land Conservation and 
Development (DLCD) (via proprietary notice) 

  Oregon Dept. of State Lands: Wetlands  
Program 

  Oregon Dept. of Transportation (ODOT)  
Region 1 

  ODOT Maintenance Dist. 2A 
  ODOT Rail Division 
  OR Dept. of Revenue 

Utilities 
  Republic Services 
  Clean Water Services (CWS) 
  Comcast [cable]* 
  Frontier Communications [phone] 
  Northwest Natural [gas] 
  Portland General Electric (PGE)  
  TriMet 
  Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 
(TVF&R) 

  United States Postal Service 
(USPS) (Washington; 18850 SW Teton 
Ave.) 

  USPS (Clackamas) 
  Washington County 
Consolidated Communications  
Agency (WCCCA) 

 

Additional Parties 
  Tualatin Citizen Involvement 
Organization (CIO) 

*Paper Copies

Attachment B

1 of 25



 

Rev. 02/21/2017 Community Development Department/Planning Division 

  1.032: Burden of Proof 
 

  31.071 Architectural Review 
Procedure 

 

  31.074 Architectural Review 
Application Review Process 

 

  31.077 Quasi-Judicial 
Evidentiary Hearing 
Procedures 

 

  Metro Code 3.09.045 
Annexation Review Criteria 

 

  32.030 Criteria for Review of 
Conditional Uses 

 

  33.020 Conditions for 
Granting a Variance that is 
not a Sign or a Wireless 
Communication Facility 

 

  33.022 Criteria for Granting a 
Sign Variance 

 

  33.024 Criteria for Granting a 
Minor Variance 

 

  33.025 Criteria for Granting a 
Variance 

 

  34.200 Tree Cutting on 
Private Property without 
Architectural Review, 
Subdivision or Partition 
Approval, or Tree Removal 
Permit Prohibited 

 

  34.210 Application for 
Architectural Review, 
Subdivision or Partition 
Review, or Permit 

 

  34.230 Criteria (tree 
removal) 

 

  35.060 Conditions for 
Granting Reinstatement of 
Nonconforming Use 

 

  36.160 Subdivision Plan 
Approval 

 

  36.230 Review Process 
(partitioning) 

 

  36.330 Review Process 
(property line adjustment) 

 

  37.030 Criteria for Review 
(IMP) 

 

  40.030 Conditional Uses 
Permitted (RL) 

 

  40.060 Lot Size for 
Conditional Uses (RL) 

  40.080 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (RL) 

 

  41.030 Conditional Uses Permitted 
(RML) 

 

  41.050 Lot Size for Conditional Uses 
(RML) 

 

  41.070 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (RML) 

 

  42.030 Conditional Uses Permitted 
(RMH) 

 

  42.050 Lot Size for Conditional Uses 
(RMH) 

 

  42.070 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (RMH) 

 

  43.030 Conditional Uses Permitted 
(RH) 

 

  43.060 Lot Size for Conditional Uses 
(RH) 

 

  43.090 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (RH) 

 

  44.030 Conditional Uses Permitted 
(RH-HR) 

 

  44.050 Lot Size for Conditional Uses 
(RH-HR) 

 

  44.070 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (RH-HR) 

 

  49.030 Conditional Uses (IN) 
 

  49.040 Lot Size for Permitted and 
Conditional Uses (IN) 

 

  49.060 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (IN) 

 

  50.020 Permitted Uses (CO) 
 

  50.030 Central Urban Renewal Plan – 
Additional Permitted Uses and 
Conditional Uses (CO) 

 

  50.040 Conditional Uses (CO) 
 

  52.030 Conditional Uses (CR) 
 

  53.050 Conditional Uses (CC) 
 

  53.055 Central Urban Renewal Area – 
Conditional Uses (CC) 

 

  54.030 Conditional Uses (CG) 
 

  56.030 Conditional Uses (MC) 
 

  56.045 Lot Size for Conditional Uses 
(MC) 

  57.030 Conditional Uses 
(MUCOD) 

 

  60.040 Conditional Uses (ML) 
 

  60.041 Restrictions on Conditional 
Uses (ML) 

 

  61.030 Conditional Uses (MG) 
 

  61.031 Restrictions on Conditional 
Uses (MG) 

 

  62.030 Conditional Uses (MP) 
 

  62.031 Restrictions on Conditional 
Uses (MP) 
 

  64.030 Conditional Uses (MBP) 
 

  64.050 Lot Size for Permitted and 
Conditional Uses (MBP) 

 

  64.065 Setback Requirements for 
Conditional Uses (MBP) 

 

  68.030 Criteria for Designation of 
a Landmark 

 

  68.060 Demolition Criteria  
 

  68.070 Relocation Criteria 
 

  68.100 Alteration and New 
Construction Criteria 

 

  68.110 Alteration and New 
Construction Approval Process 

 

  73.130 Standards 
 

  73.160 Standards 
 

  73.190 Standards – Single-Family 
and Multi-Family Uses 

 

  73.220 Standards 
 

  73.227 Standards 
 

 73.230 Landscaping Standards 
 

  73.300 Landscape Standards – 
Multi-Family Uses 

 

  73.310 Landscape Standards – 
Commercial, Industrial, Public and 
Semi-Public Uses 

 

  73.320 Off-Street Parking Lot 
Landscaping Standards 

 

  73.470 Standards 
 

  73.500 Standards 
 
 

Attachment B

2 of 25



 
 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 
Information 
Name:  Title:  

Company Name:  
 

 
Current address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax: Email:  

Applicant 
Name: Company Name: 

Address: 
  City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax: Email:  

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:  

Property Owner 
Name:  

Address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Property Owner’s Signature:  Date 

(Note: Letter of authorization is required if not signed by owner) 

Architect 
Name: 

Address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax:  Email:  

Landscape Architect 
Name:  

Address:  

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer 
Name:  

 
 

Address: 

City: State:  ZIP Code:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Project 
Project Title:  

Address: 

City:  State: ZIP Code:  

Brief Project Description:   
 
 Proposed Use: 

Attachment B

3 of 25

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Reid Stewart

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Consultant/Agent

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Acom Consulting, Inc.

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
4015 SW Battaglia Avenue

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Gresham

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97080

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
reid.stewart@acomconsultinginc.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.720.6526

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
POR Durham

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
10290 SW Tualatin Road

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Tualatin

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97062

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97062

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
10290 SW Tualatin Road

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TOTE-N-STOW INC. - Joana Freedman

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Tualatin

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
New 100' monopole associated with new wireless communications facility

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings LLC c/o PI Tower Development LLC

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
909 Lake Carolyn Parkway

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Irving

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TX

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
75039

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Wireless communications facility

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Brandon Olsen

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.951.7515

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
brandon.olsen@pitowers.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Rick Matteson

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
425.209.6723

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
rick.matteson@acomconsultinginc.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97035

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Lake Oswego

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
5200 SW Meadows Road, Suite 150

reidstewart
Typewritten Text

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.692.3930

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TBD

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
See attached LOA

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
See attached LOA



Value of Improvements:  

 
 
 
AS THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS APPLICATION, I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE READ THIS APPLICATION AND 
STATE THAT THE INFORMATION ABOVE, ON THE FACT SHEET, AND THE SURROUNDING PERTY OWNER MAILING LIST IS 
CORRECT. I AGREE TO COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE CITY AND COUNTY ORDINANCES AND STATE LAWS REGARDING 
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION AND LAND USE. 
 
 
 
  

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:  

 

Office Use 
Case No:  Date Received: Received by:  

Fee: Complete Review: Receipt No:  

Application Complete as of:  
     

ARB hearing date (if applicable):  

Posting Verification:  6 copies of drawings (folded) 
  1 reproducible 8 ½” X 11” vicinity map 1 reproducible 8 ½” X 11” site, grading, LS, Public Facilities plan 

Neighborhood/Developer meeting materials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised: 6/12/14 

Attachment B

4 of 25

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
$130,000



 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
APPLICATION	FOR		
VARIANCE	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
UNMANNED	WIRELESS	
TELECOMMUNICATIONS	
FACILITY	AT:		
	
	
10290	SW	Tualatin	Road	
Tualatin,	OR	97062		
	
	
	
Prepared	By	
	

	
	
Date		
October	03,	2017	
	
	
	
Project	Name	
POR	Durham	

Attachment B

5 of 25



   

 2 

	
Applicant:			 	 Lendlease	(US)	Telecom	Holdings	LLC		

c/o	PI	Tower	Development	LLC	
909	Lake	Carolyn	Parkway	
Irving,	TX	75039	

	
Co-Applicant:	 	 Verizon	Wireless	(VAW),	LLC	dba,	Verizon	Wireless	

5430	NE	122nd	Avenue	
Portland,	OR	97230	

	
Representative:		 Acom	Consulting,	Inc.	
	 	 	 Reid	Stewart	
	 	 	 5200	SW	Meadows	Road,	Suite	150	

Lake	Oswego,	OR	97035	
	

Property	Owner:	 Tote	‘N	Stow,	Inc.	
	 	 	 10290	SW	Tualatin	Road	

Tualatin,	OR	97062	
	
Project	Information:	
Site	Address:		 	 10290	SW	Tualatin	Road,	Tualatin,	OR	97062	
Parcel:			 	 2S123B000800	
Parcel	Area:	 	 3.63	acres	
Zone	Designation:		 ML	(Light	Manufacturing	Planning	District)	
Existing	Use:	 	 Storage	Facility	
Project	Area:	 	 1,200	square	foot	lease	area	(25’	x	48’	fenced	equipment	area)	
	
	
Chapter	33:	Variances	
	
Section	33.025	–	Criteria	for	Granting	a	Variance	for	a	Wireless	Communication	Facility.	
	
No	variance	to	the	separation	or	height	requirements	for	wireless	communication	facilities	shall	be	granted	by	
the	Planning	Commission	unless	it	can	be	shown	that	the	following	criteria	are	met.		The	criteria	for	granting	a	
variance	to	the	separation	or	height	requirements	for	wireless	communication	facilities	shall	be	limited	to	this	
section,	and	shall	not	include	the	standard	variance	criteria	of	Section	33.020,	Conditions	for	Granting	a	Variance	
that	is	not	for	a	Sign	or	a	Wireless	Communication	Facility.	
	

(1) The	City	may	grant	a	variance	from	the	provisions	of	TDC	73.470(9),	which	requires	a	1500-foot	
separation	between	WCFs,	providing	the	applicant	demonstrates	compliance	with	(a)	or	(b)	below.	

(a) coverage	and	capacity.	
(i) It	is	technically	not	practicable	to	provide	the	needed	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	

intended	to	provide	and	locate	the	proposed	tower	on	available	sites	more	than	1,500	
feet	from	an	existing	wireless	communication	facility	or	from	the	proposed	location	of	a	
wireless	communication	facility	for	which	an	application	has	been	filed	and	not	

Attachment B

6 of 25



   

 3 

denied.		The	needed	capacity	or	coverage	shall	be	documented	with	a	Radio	Frequency	
report;	

	
Response:		Verizon	Wireless,	the	co-applicant,	has	done	extensive	research	looking	at	opportunities	in	the	
area	to	collocate	on	existing	towers	or	buildings,	as	that	is	always	a	preferred	option	when	available.		If	an	
existing	tower	or	structure	is	not	available	at	the	specified	height	or	not	attainable	because	of	space	
constraints	or	unreliable	structural	design,	then	Verizon	Wireless	will	propose	a	new	tower.		In	this	instance,	
there	is	one	existing	tower,	the	ATC	tower,	which	is	located	outside	of	the	search	area	designated	as	usable	by	
Verizon	Wireless’	RF	department,	but	within	the	1,500-foot	radius	of	the	proposed	facility.		This	tower	is	not	
viable	as	a	solution	to	meet	their	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	due	to	the	existing	trees	that	would	cause	
interference.		There	are	no	other	existing	towers	available	to	collocate	on	within	the	area	of	interest	thus	a	
new	tower	is	being	proposed,	which	will	in	turn	be	available	for	other	providers	to	collocate	on	in	the	future.		
	
In	order	to	meet	the	Verizon’s	coverage	and	capacity	objectives,	it	is	necessary	to	site	a	tower	within	the	
search	ring	provided	by	Verizon’s	RF	department	as	shown	below.		Moving	outside	this	search	ring	is	
technically	not	practicable	and	has	adverse	effects	on	providing	the	needed	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	
the	tower	is	intended	to	provide,	which	include	nearby	high-traffic	residential	areas	to	the	North.		Siting	
outside	the	search	ring	can	also	create	interference	with	other	nearby	network	sites	where	coverage	may	
overlap.	
	
The	Applicant	is	requesting	a	variance	to	the	1,500-foot	tower	separation	requirement.		There	is	an	existing	
146-foot	ATC	monopole	support	structure	outside	of	the	search	ring,	approximately	750	feet	to	the	SW	of	the	
proposed	support	tower,	located	at	10699	SW	Herman	Road.		Per	the	tower	owner,	there	is	currently	
available	space	on	the	tower	at	the	100-foot	level,	however	this	is	not	high	enough	to	avoid	interference	from	
multiple	trees	surrounding	the	tower	and	still	meet	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	to	the	North,	as	detailed	
in	the	attached	RF	Usage	and	Facility	Justification	Report	and	RF	Engineer	Interference	Letter.			
	
Locating	the	tower	within	the	search	ring	and	outside	the	1,500-foot	radius	of	the	nearby	existing	ATC	tower	
is	also	not	a	desirable	alternative	as	it	would	mean	locating	in	another	part	of	the	ML	zone	without	existing	
screening	or	in	the	RML	or	RMH	zone,	where	a	conditional	use	permit	would	be	required	and	where	it	would	
be	very	visible	to	nearby	residential	areas.	
	
In	addition,	T-Mobile	has	also	indicated	that	they	intend	on	co-locating	on	the	proposed	WCF,	if	approved,	as	
the	existing	ATC	tower	to	the	SW	will	not	meet	their	coverage	and	capacity	requirements	either	as	noted	in	
the	attached	Letter	from	T-Mobile	RF.	
	

(ii) The	collocation	report,	required	as	part	of	the	Architectural	Review	submittal,	shall	
document	that	the	existing	WCFs	within	1500	feet	of	the	proposed	WCF,	or	a	WCF	within	
1500	feet	of	the	proposed	WCF	for	which	application	has	been	filed	and	not	denied,	
cannot	be	modified	to	accommodate	another	provider;	and,	

	
Response:		The	only	existing	monopole	tower	located	within	1,500	feet	of	the	proposed	location	cannot	be	
modified	as	it	is	not	designed	to	be	extended	to	the	necessary	height	required	to	avoid	interference	from	the	
tall	trees	currently	surrounding	the	tower.		The	existing	tower	would	need	to	be	removed	and	replaced	with	a	
new	tower	at	least	20-30	feet	taller	to	avoid	interference	unless	the	trees	were	to	be	removed	or	reduced	in	
height	to	approximately	the	100-foot	level	or	lower.			

Attachment B

7 of 25



   

 4 

	
Topping	the	trees	would	create	undesirable	visual	impacts	to	nearby	residential	areas,	whereas	the	proposed	
location	is	well	screened	to	nearby	residential	areas	to	the	North	and	does	not	require	the	removal	or	
trimming	of	any	existing	trees.		The	topped	trees	would	also	create	a	negative	visual	impact	on	their	own,	as	
over	a	third	of	the	height	would	need	to	be	removed	to	avoid	interference.	
	

(iii) There	are	no	available	buildings,	light	or	utility	poles,	or	water	towers	on	which	antennas	
may	be	located	and	still	provide	the	approximate	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	to	
provide.	

	
Response:		No	available	buildings,	light	or	utility	poles,	or	water	towers	with	adequate	height	to	meet	
coverage	objectives	are	located	in	the	geographical	search	ring	necessary	to	provide	coverage.		See	Search	
Ring	and	½	mile	radius	maps	below.	
	

(b) site	characteristics.		The	proposed	monopole	location	includes	tall,	dense	evergreen	trees	that	
will	screen	at	least	50%	of	the	proposed	monopole	from	the	RL	District	or	from	a	small	lot	
subdivision	in	the	RML	District.	

	
Response:		Application	has	demonstrated	compliance	with	Section	33.025(1)(a)	above,	however	proposed	
location	also	meets	this	requirement	and	includes	tall,	dense	evergreens	trees	that	will	screen	at	least	50%	of	
the	proposed	monopole	from	adjacent	residential	areas.		The	proposed	support	tower	is	sited	in	the	least	
intrusive	location	possible	to	cover	the	gap	in	coverage	and	capacity.	
	

(2) The	City	may	grant	a	variance	to	the	maximum	allowable	height	for	a	WCF	if	the	applicant	
demonstrates:	

(a) It	is	technically	not	practicable	to	provide	the	needed	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	
to	provide	at	a	height	that	meets	the	TDC	requirements.	The	needed	capacity	or	coverage	shall	
be	documented	with	a	Radio	Frequency	report;	and,	

(b) The	collocation	report,	required	as	part	of	the	Architectural	Review	submittal,	shall	document	
that	existing	WCFs,	or	a	WCF	for	which	an	application	has	been	filed	and	not	denied,	cannot	be	
modified	to	provide	the	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	to	provide.	

	
Response:		Not	applicable	–	Applicant	is	not	requesting	a	variance	to	the	maximum	allowable	height	for	the	
proposed	WCF.	
	
	 	

Attachment B

8 of 25



   

 5 

VERIZON	SEARCH	RING	
 

	
	

EXISTING	TOWER	1,500’	RADIUS	WITH	VERIZON	SEARCH	RING	OVERLAP	
	

	
	

	 	

Attachment B

9 of 25



   

 6 

½	MILE	RADIUS	OF	PROPOSED	TOWER	
	

	

Attachment B

10 of 25



RF Usage and Facility 
Justification

Durham

Prepared by Verizon Wireless Walid Nasr

Jun 14, 2017

Attachment B

11 of 25



Capacity is the need for more wireless resources.
Cell sites have a limited amount of resources to
handle voice calls, data connections, and data
volume. When these limits are reached, user
experience quickly degrades. This could mean
customers may no longer be able to make/receive
calls nor be able to browse the internet. It could
also mean that webpages will be very slow to
download.

Coverage is the need to expand 
wireless service into an area that 
either has no service or bad service.  
The request for service often comes 
from  customers or emergency 
personnel.  Expansion of service could 
mean improving the signal levels in a 
large apartment complex or new 
residential community.  It could also 
mean providing new service along a 
newly built highway.

Introduction:
There are two main drivers that prompt the need for a new cell site. One is
coverage and the other is capacity.

Attachment B

12 of 25



Capacity is the amount of resources a cell site has to handle customer demand.  We utilize 
sophisticated programs that use current usage trends to forecast future capacity needs.  Since it 
takes an average of (1-3) years to complete a cell site project, we have to start the acquisition 
process several years in advance to ensure the new cell site is in place before the existing cell site 
hits capacity limits.

Location, Location, Location.  A good capacity cell site needs to be in the center of the user 
population which ensures even traffic distribution around the cell.  A typical cell site is configured 
in a pie shape, with each slice (aka. sector) holding 33% of the resources.  Optimal performance is 
achieve when traffic is evenly distributed across the 3 sectors.

Attachment B

13 of 25



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area of Existing Site
Attachment B

14 of 25



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area Offloaded by New 
Site

Durham

Residential area

Attachment B

15 of 25



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area Offloaded by New 
Site at New Proposed Location

Durham

Residential area

Marginal coverage in residential area due to 
surrounding trees at existing ATC tower 

Attachment B

16 of 25



Coverage with Durham Site

Durham

Attachment B

17 of 25



Coverage with Durham Site at New 
Proposed Location

Durham

Attachment B

18 of 25



Need Case for:  Durham

Summary: The existing sites King City, Muddy Water, TigerHS cannot carry the data traffic that exists in the 
area it serves. 

Detail below:

- Exact data about sites is proprietary and cannot be disclosed due to competitive reasons.  

- The existing cell sites King City, Muddy Water, TigerHS are forecasted to reach capacity in the near future.  

- The new cell site Durham will provide additional resources to existing sites.  It will take some users off of 
existing sites, which will alleviate the capacity constraint.  

- This will improve customer experience (faster webpage downloads and fewer drop calls).

- Without the new site Durham, existing sites in area will reach capacity which will negatively impact customer’s 
ability to make/receive calls and browse the internet.

Attachment B

19 of 25



Andrew H. Thatcher 
Environmental Health Physics 

 
July 13, 2017 

 
To:  
Acom Consulting, Inc. 
5200 SW Meadows Rd 
Suite 150 
Lake Oswego, OR 97035 
 
Acom consulting has requested that I review the existing antenna site at 10699 SW 
Herman Road, Tualatin OR, and evaluate the interference potential due to the existing 
tree canopy as shown in Figure 1.  In performing this evaluation I'll review the basics of 
wireless transmission, what cellular technology can compensate for and what results in a 
deficient site.  Included in the review is Verizon's propagation models1 for both their 
proposed Durham site and the existing ATC tower. 
 
In a perfect world for wireless transmission, an un-attenuated radio signal would be sent 
by the antenna and received by the user without any interference.  This is rarely the case 
as buildings, hills and trees all combine to make the signals propagate along multiple 
pathways.  The three primary components of signal propagation paths are reflection, 
diffraction and scattering.  Reflection occurs from large smooth surfaces such as 
roadways or buildings.  Diffraction occurs when a large object is in the direct line of sight 
path, such as a hill or building.  Scattering occurs when the radio waves contact objects 
similar or smaller than the wavelength of the frequency of interest.  For wireless 
transmission that can be from 700 MHz (~17" wavelength) to 2100 MHz (~6" 
wavelength).  Scattering would be the dominant interaction with trees while all sources of 
interference serve to attenuate the signal to some degree with each interaction. 
 
So the presence of trees creates scattering which causes signal distortion in addition to 
signal attenuation.  The transmitted signals received by the end user (a person's cell 
phone) will consist not only of the original (un-attenuated) signal but also several 
secondary signals traveling on different paths.  These multi-path signals, since they are a 
result of  scattering (since we're concerned with the effects of trees), travel a longer signal 
path and therefore arrive at an end user (cell phone) later than the original un-attenuated 
signal.  These late signal arrivals become interference and can result in distortion of the 
original signal.  This type of distortion is frequency dependent with greater distortion 
occurring at higher frequencies.  Multi-path signals are a common occurrence in our 
environment but such multi-path signals are due to stationary objects such as homes, 
rooftops, and even trees at a distance.  Such distortions can readily be corrected due to 
the use of a RAKE2 receiver in the phone.  However, for a tree canopy in a near field 
environment such as in Figure 1 the obstruction is not constant but in fact continuously 

                                                           
1 Propagation modeling provided by W. Nasr, Verizon RF Engineer, 7/5/2017. 
2 Briefly, RAKE receivers are used in the receiver phones of Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) 
systems.  The receiver collects and treats each time shifted version of the original signal as an independent 
signal and then combines them into a single signal provided the delay is not too long. 

5 2 2  N O R T H  E  S T  •  T A C O M A ,  W A  •  9 8 4 0 3  

P H O N E :  2 5 3 . 6 1 7 . 1 4 4 9  •  T H A T C H E R . D R E W @ C O M C A S T . N E T  

Attachment B

20 of 25



 – 2 – July 16, 2017  

 

changing.   The result is scattered signals that may be stronger than direct signal due to 
signal attenuation since the tree canopy density is not uniform and the signals going 
through the tree will be attenuated differently.  Further, the motion of the trees with wind 
presents a continuously changing foliage density that results in selective signal fading 
with time.  For the tree canopy shown in Figure 1, the near field environment could easily 
result in signal attenuation of 10 dB to as much as 20 dB.  Combine this attenuation with 
the constantly changing signal fading environment and the result in a constantly changing 
delay (due to wind) that the RAKE receiver would have difficulty separating as noise.  
Reviewing Figure 1 again and one can see that the antennas are near the tops of the trees 
so the tree movement would include swaying of the trees in addition to individual branch 
movements. 
 
Figure 2 is the predicted propagation to the residential location of interest from the 
existing antenna located within the trees.  Figure 3 shows the same residential area with 
the antenna located in the proposed location.  Both figures are provided to support the 
previous qualitative analysis.  The figures show that the Reference Signal Received 
Power (RSRP) is at least 10 dBm lower for each location.  Note that this analysis does 
not consider the effect of wind. 
 
Trees at a distance from the antennas may present acceptable interference as the overall 
impact could be managed.  For antennas placed well beneath the tree canopy in a near 
field environment affecting all three radiating sectors, it would be difficult to envision a 
wireless network that could compensate for these factors, the presence of wind, and 
remain effective in terms of capacity for the site and successful integration with the 
surrounding wireless sites.  The attenuation and scattering of the signal through the trees 
would result in a lower transmitted power level that could not be improved by increasing 
the power as that would only serve to also increase the power of the multipath signals.  In 
short, such a setup in the trees would present a problem regardless of the transmitted 
power level. 
 
To summarize, the existing ATC tower is not a suitable antenna site without substantial 
modification based on the information provided in this report. 

Attachment B

21 of 25



 – 3 – July 16, 2017  

 

 
Figure 1:  Photo of  existing tower surrounded by a dense tree canopy in a near field environment 

Attachment B

22 of 25



 – 4 – July 16, 2017  

 

 
Figure 2:  Predicted propagation model showing the residential area of  interest from the existing 
antenna. 
 

 
Figure 3:  Predicted propagation model showing the RSRP for the residential area of  interest with the 
proposed antenna location. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B

23 of 25



 – 5 – July 16, 2017  

 

Qualifications  
 
I am a member of the IEEE,  the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers as well 
as a member of the Health Physics Society.  I am a board certified health physicist with a 
masters in health physics from the Georgia Institute of Technology.  I have over 29 years 
of experience in the evaluation of both ionizing and non ionizing radiation sources.  I am 
a consultant to the ACGIH Threshold Limit Values for Physical Agents Committee as 
well as a non ionizing subject matter editor for the Health Physics Journal. 
 
 

Regards, 

    Andrew H. Thatcher, MSHP, CHP 

 

 

Attachment B

24 of 25



Attachment B

25 of 25


	Agenda
	AI_2635_Proclamation Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as Emergency Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin
	ATT_Proclamation
	Proclamation
	Declaring the Week of May 20-26, 2018 as
	Emergency Medical Services Week
	in the City of Tualatin

	AI_2662_Recognition of Paul Hennon on the Occassion of His Retirement
	ATT_Proclamation
	Proclamation
	Recognizing Paul Hennon
	on the Occasion of His Retirement

	AI_2657_Consideration of Approval of the Minutes 
	ATT_City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 14, 2018
	AI_2652_Approval of 2018 Liquor License Renewal Late Submittal
	AI_2653_Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Lakeside Bistro
	ATT_Attachment A - Vicinity Map
	ATT_Attachment B- License Types
	ATT_Attachment C- Application
	AI_2648_Resolution to Accept MSTIP Funds to Complete Project Design and Construction for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Project
	ATT_Resolution 5366-18
	AI_2658_Resolution to acquire property for parkland purposes
	ATT_Resolution 5370-18
	exhibit A.reso autho acquisition_2018-5-29.pdf
	PROPERTY DESCRIPTION / LOCATOR MAP


	AI_2651_Consideration of Ordinance No.1409-18 Establishing a Core Area Parking District (CAPD) Tax Rate of $   for Fiscal Year 2018_19
	ATT_Ordinance 1409-18 
	AI_2659_Consideration of Resolution No. 5367-18 Approving a Minor Architectural Review Applicationfor Parking Lot Improvements
	ATT_Resolution 5367-18
	ATT_Attachment A
	Res 5367-18 Analysis and Findings 5.21.18
	Attachment 104
	MAR17-0041_Plan_Set_050218


	AI_2660_Consideration of Resolution No. 5369-18 Granting a Variance to the Separation Requirements of Wireless Communication Facilities 
	ATT_Resolution 5369-18
	ATT_Attachment A
	ATT_Attachment B
	Notice of Application
	Application For Variance
	Variance Narrative


